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INTRODUCTORY
SECTION

City Manager’s Office
4300 NW 36th Street • Lauderdale Lakes, Florida 33319-5599
www.lauderdalelakes.org
March 14, 2013
To the Mayor, Vice-Mayor, City Commissioners, Residents and Business Owners of the City of
Lauderdale Lakes, Florida:

I am pleased to forward the City of Lauderdale Lakes Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012. These financial statements have been audited by Harvey Covington and Thomas
LLP, independent certified public accountants. The financial position of the City of Lauderdale Lakes has
improved over the past fiscal year.

The City of Lauderdale Lakes Mayor, Vice-Mayor, City

Commissioners and City Management Team worked together to implement the City’s Five Year Financial
Recovery Plan and to improve the City’s financial health over this timeframe.
During fiscal year (FY) 2012, the City made some significant achievements and advancements towards
its financial recovery, including:
•

Adopted and maintained a fiscally sound FY2012 Budget and monitored the budget throughout
the year to ensure a balanced General Fund at the end of the fiscal year

•

Maintained proactive communications with Broward Sheriff Office (BSO) Officials and full
compliance with the negotiated agreements between the City and BSO to pay for regular Police
and Fire Rescue Services and to resolve the City’s outstanding debt obligations with BSO and
Broward County government

•

Continued to provide detailed monthly budget reports to the Mayor, Vice-Mayor, City
Commissioners, State Officials, Broward County Officials, BSO Officials, and other external
stakeholders in an effort to improve transparency and communications on the City’s financial
condition

•

Maintained a streamlined City government operational structure and workforce to realize cost
savings

•

Created and implemented sound financial controls, and financial action plans that will positively
impact the City’s long-term fiscal health

•

Cooperated with the completion of an independent audit of the Lauderdale Lakes Community
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Redevelopment Agency’s (CRA) revenues, expenditures and operating protocols. The City
accepted the audit findings and implemented all the recommendations and corrective actions in
fiscal year 2011 and the new fiscal year
•

Continued to maintain open communication with State of Florida Inspectors General’s Office,
Broward County Auditor, financial institutions, residents, business owners, and other stakeholders
on the City’s financial condition and financial recovery plan

•

Worked with the Mayor, City Commission, and City Management to enhance financial protocols,
reduce potential FY2011 budget overruns and prepare a balanced FY2012 Budget including
increased revenues and decreased expenditures

•

Acted immediately, at the request of the Mayor, Vice-Mayor and City Commissioners, to develop
and implement corrective actions to properly address all the audit findings included in the FY2011
Audit Report and the forensic audit of the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency.

•

Implemented the necessary difficult steps to address its deteriorating financial condition including
but not limited to: increasing property taxes, fees and assessment, reducing General Fund
expenses, executing long-term debt repayment agreements especially for outstanding public
safety services and closely monitoring and managing the City’s Adopted Budget. Such steps
were critical in reversing the City’s deteriorating financial conditions.

•

Maintained a workforce dedicated to the betterment of the City and enhancing public service to
residents and businesses of the City of Lauderdale Lakes

The national, state and local economic challenges had a negative impact on the City. Additionally, the
voter mandated property tax reductions legislation, increased government and public safety expenses,
over projection of City revenues and budget overages contributed to the City’s adverse financial condition
in fiscal year 2011.
With the continued implementation of the City’s Five Year Financial Plan and focus on fiscal
accountability and transparency, I believe that the City will continue to successfully deal with its financial
challenges in the future. I further believe that we will continue to positively respond to the expectations of
our residents, businesses, and external stakeholders to improve the overall financial condition of the City.
Sincerely,

Jonathan K. Allen, MPA
City Manager
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City of Lauderdale Lakes
Financial Services Department
4300 NW 36th Street • Lauderdale Lakes, Florida 33319-5599
www.lauderdalelakes.org

March 14, 2013

To the Mayor, Vice-Mayor and City Commissioners and City Manager of Lauderdale Lakes, Florida

As mandated by both local ordinances and state statutes, the Annual Financial Report of the City of
Lauderdale Lakes, Florida (the City), for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2012, is hereby submitted.
In accordance with the philosophy shared by city management, this report provides full disclosure of
financial information in conformance with the principles and standards for financial reporting set forth by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Additionally, an audit was conducted in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants.
MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
The responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rest with City Management. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects. The Annual Report serves as an
essential document which provides a detailed account of the City’s financial condition at the specified
point in time. The Annual Report is presented in a manner designed to set forth the financial position and
results of the City’s operations as measured by the financial activity of various funds and account groups.
The included disclosures will also provide the reader with an understanding of the City’s financial affairs.
INTERNAL CONTROLS
Internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance about the
achievement of the City’s objectives in reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of
operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. An internal control framework has been
established to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management. We believe the City’s internal controls adequately
safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.
AUDIT PROCESS
The City’s financial statements have been audited by Harvey, Covington & Thomas, LLC. The goal of the
auditor was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements, for fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012, are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and financial decision made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditors, based on their audit, rendered an unqualified
opinion that the financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. In addition, the independent audit of the City’s financial statements was designed
to meet the federal and state mandated “Single Audit” Act which was created to meet the special needs of
federal and state agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent
auditor to report on the fair presentation of the financial statements and on the audited government’s
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements relating to the administration of federal and state
awards. For fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, the City did meet the spending threshold and thus
single audit reports are included in the City’s Annual Audit Report.
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INTRODUCTION TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
The Annual Financial Report is divided into three sections:
•

Introductory Section: This section contains the letter of transmittal, a list of principal officials as
of September 30, 2012, and the City’s organizational chart.

•

Financial Section: This section includes the independent auditor’s report, management
discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements and notes that provide an overview of the
City’s financial position and operating results, the combining statements of non-major funds and
other schedules.

•

Statistical Section: This section contains unaudited financial data and debt statistics which is
generally presented in a multi-year format. The statistical section is not included in the year
ended September 30, 2012 report.
PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

On June 22, 1961, the City of Lauderdale Lakes was incorporated by the Florida State Legislature. The
City operates under the Mayor/City Commission/City Manager form of government. The Mayor presides
over the City Commission meetings and is recognized as the head of the municipal government for
ceremonial purposes. The Mayor may participate in all deliberations of the Commission, but votes only to
break a tie. The terms of office are four year terms for the Mayor and the City Commissioners. The City
Manager is appointed by the City Commission. The City Manager is the Chief Administrative Officer
(CAO) of the City which is responsible for achieving the City’s goals and objectives. Also, the City
Manager handles the appointment and supervision of the City’s Department Directors.
The City of Lauderdale Lakes provides a full range of municipal services that include public safety
services through contract with the Broward Sheriff’s Office (BSO), development services, public works,
parks and recreation, social services including an Alzheimer’s Care Center. From an operational
perspective, the City is responsible for managing services to include solid waste and recycling services;
storm water services; maintenance and repair of streets, bridges, and street lighting; building inspections;
business tax (formerly Occupational Licensing); and planning and zoning regulations. The administrative
offices established to provide support services to all departmental functions are as follows: City Clerk; City
Manager; Financial Services including Information Technology and Purchasing; and Human Resources
and Risk Management.
The City of Lauderdale Lakes Community Redevelopment Agency (the CRA) was created by the Mayor
and City Commission on September 26, 2000 by adopting a resolution defining and establishing the
Agency in accordance with Section 163.357 of the Florida Statutes under the Community Redevelopment
Act of 1969. The CRA’s board of directors is the City Commission. The purpose of the CRA is to
promote redevelopment by improving the uses and taxable values of property within the designated
community redevelopment area. The CRA is a special revenue fund of the City of Lauderdale Lakes;
therefore, has been included as a component unit and integral part of the attached financial statements.
The CRA continued to explore areas for further redevelopment opportunities in Lauderdale Lakes.
Significant growth in the tax base was realized in those redeveloped areas. The CRA entered into a
public/private partnership for design, marketing and development of the CRA owned 22-acre commercial
property creating local jobs and enhancing economic development.
The City of Lauderdale Lakes continued to provide training, resources and networking opportunities for
new and prospective business owners through the Business Resource Center which is housed in a CRA
owned facility. Additionally, the Business Resource Center focused on facilitating professional
development training, providing resources, promoting incentives and developing partnerships with
business development agencies to assist local business owners.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING
Based on the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, a primary
government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. In addition, the
primary government is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint
a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on the primary government. Nonetheless, the primary government may also be
financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it.
The annual budget is the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control. Public workshops and
hearings are held throughout the entire budget process to obtain input from the residents. The City
Manager gives directives to Department Directors to develop and submit proposed departmental budgets
within the appropriate annual guidelines. Budgetary control is maintained at the departmental and fund
level, with the financial services department providing support to departments with their budget. The City
Manager reviews each proposal with the Directors and prepares a proposed budget that is delivered to
the Commission. The Commission holds budget workshops to discuss and amend the City Manager’s
proposed budget. During the first required Special Budget Public Hearing the Commission adopts a
proposed budget, approves the proposed millage rates, and approves final special assessment rates. A
second required Budget Public Hearing is then held to adopt a final budget and approve final millage
rates. The City’s budget goes into effect October 1 and covers the fiscal year, which ends the following
th
September 30 .
LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK
The City of Lauderdale Lakes continued to develop strategies to strengthen its economic condition by
focusing on the development of existing businesses and recruitment of new businesses. The business
community is comprised of businesses catering to diverse business needs. The City’s top businesses
include: Florida Medical Center, Interactive Response Technologies, Inc., Wal-Mart Supercenter, Catholic
Health Services, and Florida Career College total five (5). Other diverse businesses in the City include:
Burlington Coat Factory, ALDI Food Market, Office Depot, Banking Services – Bank United, Chase Bank,
SunTrust and Bank of America, and a variety of specialty stores. The City’s future economic
development strategy calls for that the recruitment of national retailers, expansion of existing businesses
and establishment of new businesses will create sustainable jobs in the City of Lauderdale Lakes.
The City’s Business Resource Center (BRC) serves as an impetus for business growth and development.
The center offers job readiness training and workforce development programming for the betterment of
the entire City. City residents and businesses alike have been able to take advantage of job and
business opportunities in retail sales, medical services, tourism, construction, state/county/city
government, communications and financial services. To date, the overall impact of the BRC’s
programming has generated positive direct and indirect results for the City’s economy.
The City experienced a modest decline in property values similar to other cities within the state and local
region. The local economy’s difficulties mirror those on the national level. The housing market stabilized
with a drop in the foreclosure rate. One of the challenges facing the City of Lauderdale Lakes relates to
the high number of residential dwellings that pay a minimal amount of property taxes, if any, due to
exemptions. To a certain extent, the reduced property tax receipts lower the amount of revenue
generated for essential city services and programs. The augmented expenditures left the City of
Lauderdale Lakes in a precarious position grappled with the tough decision to make significant
adjustments in the budget.
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LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
As part of the need to provide financial stability to a weakening local economy, City Management
developed a Five-Year Financial Plan. The financial plan serves as a valuable tool to assist the City
Commission and City Management in making sound fiscal decisions particularly as it relates to the
surmountable debt service. Most important, the City negotiated and executed mutually acceptable
agreements with the Broward Sheriff’s Office (BSO) for the following: (1) approximately $9 Million
outstanding obligations covering FY2010 disputed Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) balances
and FY2011 police and fire rescue services costs and (2) new 5 Year City/BSO police and fire rescue
services agreement at a reduced cost to accommodate the City’s limited revenues. To date, the City
continues to meet agreement and other requirements.
The City also adopted financial goals and objectives by which to measure the City’s overall performance
and financial recovery from poor economic conditions. The City Commission and City Management
continued to review and evaluate the budgetary line items and give consideration to the elimination or
reduction of expenditures to halt the escalating debt accumulated in 2011. The City Administration must
continue to make recommendations to immediately reduce and manage expenses across the board,
including personnel costs and contractual services. In fiscal year 2012, the City maintained the increased
level for charges for services to meet anticipated reductions in revenue. As noted in the FY 2011 Annual
Report the City took extreme measures to minimize the financial crisis without jeopardizing critical City
services. The result of the fiscal constraint implemented in FY 2011 and continued into FY 2012 by City
Management can be seen in this September 30 year ended report. There was a significant positive
change in City’s financial condition although the City continues to have financial challenges.
MAJOR INITIATIVES AND CAPITAL PROJECTS
During fiscal year 2012, the City effectively dealt with its financial challenge. The achievements are as
follows:
•

Paid over $1 million to Broward Sheriff Office (BSO) for City/BSO Police and Fire Rescue
Services Agreement to pay the City’s outstanding debt obligations;

•

Paid current BSO obligations in a timely basis;

•

Provided monthly budget reports to keep the Mayor, City Commission, City Management and
external stakeholders updated on the City’s financial condition;

•

Achieved a balance budget as of year ended September 30, 2012;

•

Implemented the City’s Five Year Financial Plan; and

•

Implemented an agreement with Broward County for and or other governmental agencies to
complete the construction phases for the following grant funded capital projects: Federally
Funded Emergency Operations Center, CDBG/DRI Funded Alzheimer Care Center Improvement
Project, CDGB/DRI Funded Mast Arm Traffic Signal Project, and Stormwater Canal Bank
Stabilization Project.
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Respectfully submitted,
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* The City is known as the primary government with a legally separate Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) for which the City is
financially accountable. This blended component unit functions, for all practical purposes, as a department and special revenue fund of
the City that has been included as an integral part of the primary government.

viii

MAYOR
Barrington A. Russell, Sr.

VICE MAYOR
Edwina Coleman

COMMISSIONERS
Eric L. Haynes
Gloria Lewis
Benjamin Williams, Sr.
Levoyd L. Williams
Patricia Hawkins-Williams

CITY MANAGER
Jonathan K. Allen, MPA

CITY ATTORNEY
James C. Brady

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
Marie W. Elianor - Director

ix

FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
City of Lauderdale Lakes, Florida
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lauderdale
Lakes, Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly , in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2012, and the respective
changes in financial opposition, and cash flows , where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 14,
2013, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information on pages 3 through 14 and 46
through 50 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
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inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basis financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is
also not a required part of the basic financial statements,
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have to been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Hollywood, Florida
March 14, 2013
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MANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS
(MD & A)

CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
As management of the City of Lauderdale Lakes, we offer the readers of this narrative
representation of the City’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.
The City of Lauderdale Lakes’ Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to (a)
provide an overview of the City’s financial activities, (b) identify changes in the City’s financial
position, (c) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (d)
identify any individual fund issues or concerns. We encourage readers to review the financial
statements in conjunction with the transmittal letter on pages 16-24. All financial amounts in this
report, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars. City Management of
the City of Lauderdale Lakes (the City) has prepared the Annual Financial Report in accordance
with the current principles and standards for financial reporting established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34.
Fiscal Year 2012 Financial Highlights
•

The City’s assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by approximately
$24,051,960 million (net assets).

•

As of the close of the fiscal year 2012, the City of Lauderdale Lakes governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $4,548,197. Per GASB, the fund balances
are classified as follows: 1) approximately $2,898,923 is non-spendable, 2) $1,574,602
is restricted, 3) $0 is committed, 4) $0 is assigned and 5) $74,673 is unassigned.

•

The City’s governmental activities reflected $24,066,073 million in expenses and
$26,025,141 million in revenues. The City’s revenues exceeded expenses, providing an
$1,959,068 million increase in net assets. The increase mainly was attributed to an
increase in the ad valorem rate which translated into an increase in property tax
collections. More significantly, the City properly reclassified the outstanding obligation to
the Broward Sheriff’s Office (BSO) to long term debt in accordance with the debt
repayment agreement.

•

The business-type activities for the City reflected $2,148,336 million in expenses against
$4,035,456 million recognized in revenues that resulted in a $1,887,128 increase in net
assets.

•

The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) fund expenditures exceeded its revenues
by $50,477 million before other financing sources. The CRA remained current with all
debt obligations. The CRA received payment from the City in the amount of $50,000 in
accordance with the Forbearance Agreement.

•

The City’s overall financial position improved compared to the prior fiscal year 2011.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Lauderdale
Lakes’ basic financial statements. The financial section is one component of the Annual Report.
This annual report consists of three parts – Introductory Section, Financial Section and
Compliance Section. The City’s financial statements consist of: management discussion and
analysis, basic financial statements, required supplementary financial information and combining
statements for non-major governmental funds and budgetary comparison schedules. The City’s
financial statements include other financial components. To further understand the City’s
financial conditions, the City’s financial statements also include the following components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial
statements.
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information
about the City’s overall financial status.
Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
•

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the City’s financial
position is improving or deteriorating.

•

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to
show the financial reliance of the City’s distinct activities or functions on revenues
provided by the City’s taxpayers.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government, public safety, highways and streets, social services, culture and recreation,
and economic and physical development. The business-type activities consist of the storm water
services, solid waste/recycling services and building services.
The City is known as the primary government with a legally separate Community Redevelopment
Agency (CRA) for which the City is financially accountable. This blended component unit
functions, for all practical purposes, as a department and special revenue fund of the City that
has been included as an integral part of the primary government.
The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 16-17 of this report. The
remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City
government by reporting the City’s operations in more detail.
Fund Financial Statements
A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City establishes funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related laws and regulations. Within the basic financial statements, fund financial
statements focus on the City’s most significant funds rather than the City as a whole. Major funds
are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for non-major funds is provided in the form of combining statements in a later
section of this report.

The remainder of the page is intentionally left blank
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Governmental funds
Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements. These funds encompass the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements;
however, the focus is very different with fund statements providing a distinctive view of the City’s
governmental funds. These statements report short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use
of spendable resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year.
They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the
commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.
Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two
financial perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-term decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding
the differences between these two perspectives. Individual fund financial data for each of these
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements on pages 53-54 of
this report.
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 18-20 of this report.
Proprietary Funds
The proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services
for which the City charges customers a fee. The City’s proprietary funds are further classified as
enterprise funds. The enterprise fund essentially encompasses the same functions reported as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Services are provided to
customers external to the City for stormwater services, solid waste/recycling services and building
services. The basic enterprise fund financial statements are presented on pages 22-24 of this
report.
The basic financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in
the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a
section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the
information in the financial statements. In addition to these required elements, a section
is included with combining statements that provide details about the non-major
governmental funds, each of which is added together and presented in single columns in
the basic financial statements.
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements begin on page 25-46 of this report.
Other Supplementary Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information including the budgetary comparison schedule of the
major funds.
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 47-51 of this report.
The remainder of the page is intentionally left blank
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Summary of net assets. The overall asset position of the City increased in 2012. As noted
earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
There are six (6) basic transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net
Assets summary presentation as reflected below:
1) Net results of activities will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net
assets.
2) Borrowing for capital will increase current assets and long-term debt.
3) Spending borrowed proceeds on new capital will reduce current assets and increase capital
assets. Additionally, an increase in invested capital assets and an increase in related debt will
not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.
4) Spending of non-borrowed current assets on new capital will reduce current assets,
increase capital assets, reduce unrestricted net assets, and increase invested in capital assets,
net of debt.
5) Principal payment on debt will reduce current assets, reduce long-term debt, decrease
unrestricted net assets, and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.
6) Reduction of capital assets through depreciation will reduce capital assets and invested in
capital assets, net of debt.
Net assets may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position. The City’s total net
assets as reflected on the Statement of Net Assets exceeded liabilities by $24.1 million at the
close of this fiscal year. This was an increase of approximately 8.3% compared to last year’s net
assets of $20.2 million.
The largest portion of the City’s net assets 96% reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.;
land, building, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still
outstanding. Capital assets used to provide services to citizens; and thus, they are not available
for future spending. The City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt.
The resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
TOTAL NET ASSETS

$26.7

$25.9
$24.4

2007

2008

$24.1

2009
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$20.8

$20.2

2010

2011

2012

CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
City of Lauderdale Lakes' Net Assets
(In Thousands)
Business-type Activities

Governmental Activities
2012
Current and other assets

$

Capital assets
Total assets
Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

2011

6,096

$

2012

4,852

$

Total Government

2011

3,074

$

2012

1,728

$

9,170

2011
$

6,580

49,771

49,248

2,464

2,461

52,235

51,709

55,867

54,100

5,538

4,189

61,405

58,289

34,043

27,294

1,516

1,730

35,559

29,024

1,548

8,489

247

570

1,795

9,059

35,591

35,783

1,763

2,300

37,354

38,083

16,165

22,391

985

768

17,150

23,159

3,341

-

-

-

3,341

2,791

1,120

3,561

Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

770
$

20,276

(4,073)
$

18,318

$

3,776

$

1,888

$

24,052

(2,953)
$

20,206

The City’s combined net assets as reflected on the Statement of Net Assets were $24.1 million
for fiscal year 2012, $20.3 million for governmental activities and $3.8 million for business-type
activities. This represents a $4.6 million increase in net assets from fiscal year 2011. For the
governmental activities, investment in capital assets net of related debt decreased by $6.2 million.

Statement of Activities:
There are different types of factors that can positively or negatively impact other operations.
Some factors that may impact the revenues are as follows; 1) Economic Conditions 2) City
Commission authority to increase and decrease rates 3) Changing patterns in intergovernmental
and grant revenues and 4) market impacts on investment income.
Other factors that may impact the expenses are presented below; 1) Introduction of new
programs 2) inflation, any increase of commodities such as chemicals, supplies, fuels and parts
and 3) changes in service demand levels.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
1. Economic conditions can reflect a growing, stable or declining overall economic environment
and those conditions can have a significant impact on the underlying drivers of ad valorem taxes,
non-ad valorem assessments, sales and use taxes, fees and other revenues derived from the
community, as well as those received from other governments.
2. Changes in tax, assessment and fee rates by the City’s Governing Board directly affect
the most fundamental revenue streams and have the most immediate impact of all changes.
3. Changing patterns in grant and state revenue sharing calculations may cause significant
deviations to City intergovernmental revenues and put added pressure on City-generated
revenues.
4. Market impact on investment income might cause investment revenues to fluctuate widely
from year to year.
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
5. Budget Management requires that budget expenses are in line with budget revenues at the
end of the fiscal year.
Some other basic impacts are responsible for potential changes in annual expenses:
1. Introduction of new programs can have substantial impact on department/program expenses
by requiring new personnel, capital and operating funds. The continuation of inefficiencies and/or
ineffective programs require increased staffing and operational costs that exceeds the actual
budgeted resources.
2. Changes in service levels impacts expenses by changing the levels of already appropriated
expenses.
3. Salary/contract pricing increases can contribute to increased expenses. Most contracts
entered into by the City have provisions for increases, either automatic or negotiated each year.
4. While inflation generally appears to be moderate, it impacts the prices the City pays for
commodities, supplies, fuels, parts and miscellaneous services etc.

As shown above, the three primary governmental revenues as reflected on the Statement of
Activities are comprised of property taxes, charges for services and franchise fees for fiscal year
2012. For fiscal year 2012, property taxes, at $9.0 million, represents 35% of revenues while
charges for services, at $5.9 million, comprise 23% of revenues and franchise fees at $3.2
million, comprised 12% of revenues. Other major sources of revenues include $2.8 million for
intergovernmental or 11%; $2.0 million from utility taxes or 8% and grants/contribution comprise
7% or $1.9 million.
As noted previously, the City properly reclassified the outstanding obligation, to the Broward
Sheriff Office (BSO), to long term debt in accordance with the executed debt repayment
agreement. Thus, the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund balance Governmental Funds reflect proceeds from refinancing contracts payable of 6.4 million or 28%.
The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
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The following table that appears below reflects the City’s revenues and expenses for fiscal year
2012 compared to fiscal year 2011, with the resulting change in net assets:

Summary of Changes in Net Assets
(In Thousands)
Governmental Activities
Revenues:

Business-type Activities

2011

2012

2012

Total

2011

2012

2011

Program:
Charges for services

$

Operating grants/contributions

5,976

$

4,882

$

4,303

$

2,658

$

10,279

$

7,540

857

531

52

189

909

720

1,125

223

-

-

1,125

223

Property taxes

9,088

7,165

-

-

9,088

7,165

Franchise fees

3,215

3,059

-

-

3,215

3,059

Utility taxes

2,025

1,976

-

-

2,025

1,976

Intergovernmental revenue

2,855

3,722

-

-

2,855

3,722

Capital grants/contributions
General Revenues

Investment income

9

5

0

0

9

5

Sale of City Assets

(74)

40

-

-

(74)

40

Other revenues
Total Revenues

949

795

36

629

831

26,025

22,398

4,035

(320)

2,883

30,060

25,281

7,008

5,092

-

-

7,008

5,092

11,400

13,817

-

-

11,400

13,817

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Economic & physical environment

1,650

799

-

-

1,650

799

613

1,010

-

-

613

1,010

Culture and recreation

1,036

1,144

-

-

1,036

1,144

Highways and Streets

1,217

426

-

-

1,217

426

Interest on long-term debt

1,276

Social services

1,142

1,199

-

77

1,142

Stormwater

-

-

749

604

749

604

Solid waste/Recycling

-

-

1,150

1,339

1,150

1,339

Building
Total expense
Change in net assets
Transfers
Net assets beginning of year
net assets end of year

$

-

-

250

383

250

383

24,066

23,487

2,149

2,403

26,215

25,890

1,959

(1,089)

1,887

480

3,846

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,317

19,406

1,888

1,408

20,205

20,814

20,276

$

18,317

$

3,775

$

1,888

$

24,051

(609)

$

When compared with fiscal year 2011, there was an increase in property taxes due to the
increase in the ad valorem millage rate. Capital grant contributions increased by $952.000

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Governmental Activity
As shown in the following chart, governmental expenses are largely weighted in one function,
public safety, which comprises Police and Fire Rescue Services (provided by the Broward
Sheriff’s Office). At $11.4 million, public safety represents 49% of total governmental expenses.
In fiscal year 2012, general government expenses totaled $6.1 million; or 27% of total
expenditures. These expenses closely paralleled the inflation and growth in the demand for
services and other factors such organizational changes transferred divisions from Economic &
Physical Environment to General Government, elimination and/or reduction of City programs,
coupled with increases in the public safety contractual agreement. In addition to increased public
safety contractual costs, other factors that contributed to increased general governmental
expenditures included inflation and cost in the provision of City programs/services; organized
changes for maintaining, economic, physical and capital items, etc.
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
47%

Social
Services

3%

5%

5%

Debt Service

7%

Economic
and physical
environment

Culture and
Recreation

General
Government

Public
Safety

4%

Highways
and streets

29%

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business-Type Activity

Revenues earned by business-type activities are primarily concentrated in one source, charges
for services, $4.3 million. This represents the fees charged for each of the City’s enterprise
funds, Stormwater $2.2 million, Solid waste/recycling $1.4 million and Building Services
$600,490. The City must examine all rates and fees to ensure that these funds operate at full cost
recovery.
For business-type expenses, the $2.1 million represents $748,761 for Stormwater, $1.1 million for
Solid Waste and $249,736 for Building Services, compared to $2.3 million in total expenses in
2011. The decrease of $200,000 in total expenses was a result of the reduction of general
spending primarily in the Building Services fund.
The City examined its rates and adjusted them to ensure that sufficient revenues are generated
to continue with the remaining Stormwater improvements and service its debt financing due in
fiscal year 2013. Building service revenues exceeded its expenditures by $350,754. The City’s
Ordinance provided for an increase of fees in fiscal year 2012. Solid waste fund revenue
remained steady.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with the finance related
legal requirements.
Governmental Funds
The purpose of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources relative to the City’s funding requirements.
Unreserved fund balance serve as the most useful measure of the City’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $4.5 million, an increase of $8.2 million in comparison with 2011. The City
properly reclassified the outstanding obligation, to the Broward Sheriff’s Office, (B to long term
debt in accordance with the executed debt repayment agreement.
The Fire Rescue fund revenues exceeded its expenditures by an increase of $2.1. The increase
in overall revenues is due to the reclassification of the outstanding Broward Sheriff’s Office
obligation to long-term debt.
During the fiscal year 2012, the City continued Community Development Block Grant programs.
The City will aggressively pursue reimbursements from outside grant agencies for the
expenditures of funds.
The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) fund expenditures exceeded its revenues by
$50,477. The CRA fund had a positive fund balance of $3.3 million for the fiscal year ended
2012. Note: that the CRA Fund budgets re-appropriated fund balance and anticipates use of fund
balance during the fiscal year.
The General Fund
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund and largest source of day-to-day service
delivery. General tax revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual
agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenses, fixed
charges and capital improvement costs not paid through other funds are paid from this fund. At
the end of this reported fiscal year, the fund balance of the general fund was $1million, compared
to a fund balance deficit in the prior year. Of the $1 million in fund balance in the general fund,
$125,621 of this amount is non-spendable leaving a $919,816 million in unassigned fund balance.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Since the City Administration did not recommend any material revisions to the original
appropriations in the General Fund budget there is not a significant amount of information to
highlight. The Budget and Actual Comparison schedule is provided in the Supplementary
Information for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds.
The Budget and Actual Comparison Schedules show the original adopted budgets, the final
revised budget, actual results and variance between the final budget and actual results for the
General and Major Special Revenue Funds. After the original budget is approved, it may be
revised for a variety of reasons such as foreseen circumstances, loan proceeds, new grant
awards or other unanticipated revenues.
The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for the General Fund are
summarized as follows:
• Revenues were decreased by $147,360 to account for decrease in state share revenue
receipts.
• Expenditures were increased by $147,360 to reflect decreases in expenses to maintain a
balanced budget.

Capital assets:
The City’s investment in capital assets net of accumulated depreciation for its governmental and
business-type activities as of September 30, 2012 amount to $52 million compared to $51 million
from the previous year. Among the major projects completed are the Alzheimer’s Care Center
and the Mast Arms. The current CRA-related assets include the 20,000 square foot Library, the
nd
City’s Educational & Cultural Center (2 floor of the Library) and the acquisition of 22-acre land
for future development.
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 starting on page 34 of
this report.
City of Lauderdale Lakes
Capital Assets
(In thousands)
Governmental Activities
2012
Land

$

Construction in progress
Buildings
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles

17,700

Business Type Activities

2011
$

17,700

2012
$

Total

2011
-

$

2012
-

$

2011

17,700

$ 17,700
13,307

2,733

13,307

-

-

2,733

13,850

7,163

-

-

13,850

7,163

2,950

2,943

666

662

3,616

3,605

Infrastructure

28,878

23,937

4,631

4,519

33,509

28,456

Less accumulated depreciation

16,341

15,802

(2,833)

2,720

13,508

18,522

57,900

$ 51,709

Total

$

49,770

$

49,248

$

2,464

$

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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2,461
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Debt Administration:
Presented below is a chart showing the relationships of the City’s total outstanding debt
compared to its total assets for the last two years.
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 starting on page 37 of
this report.
City of Lauderdale Lakes
Outstanding Debt
(In thousands)
Governmental Activities
2012
General Obligation Bonds

$

11,972

Business Type Activities

2011
$

2012

12,537

$

Total

2011
-

$

2012
-

$

11,972

2011
$

12,537

Revenue Bonds

3,680

3,815

-

-

3,680

Note payable

1,068

1,213

1,479

1,693

2,547

2,906

Note payable-CRA

8,600

9,101

-

-

8,600

9,101

25,320

26,666

1,479

1,693

26,799

28,359

115

184

-

-

115

184

Total Bonds and Note Payable
Capital lease
Repayment Agreement

8,171

Compensated absences
Total Long-term debt

8,171

437

Total other liabilities

436

8,723
$

34,043

3,815

37

620
$

27,286

36

37
$

1,516

36
$

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank

- 14 -

474

1,729

472

8,760
$

35,559

656
$

29,015

CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Economic Conditions Affecting the City
Many of the City’s residents and businesses have begun to feel the effects of the current
economic issues as a whole. The City’s unemployment rate currently in line with the County
continues to be a hardship for residents. South Florida has been hit especially hard from the
failure of the housing market; foreclosures in the City of Lauderdale Lakes rose to unprecedented
amounts within the last fiscal year. Local governments primarily rely on property taxes and a
limited array of other taxes and fees to fund their governmental activities. There are a limited
number of State-shared revenue and grants from the state, local and federal governments. For
the business-type and certain governmental activities the user pays a related fee or charge
associated with the service.
The adopted fiscal year 2013 General Fund budget of $15.3 million was budgeted to decrease by
$383,953 which is 2% decrease when compared to fiscal year 2012. General fund property taxes
make up generally 29% of general fund budgeted revenues and are projected to decrease
overall. However, City Management recommended maintaining the 9.5% ad valorem tax rate
which will net an increase in property tax receipts from fiscal year 2012. The City’s property value
declined and the combined affect of Amendment one, which allows permanent tax relief to
property owners resulted in continuation of the millage rate of 9.500 mills per $1,000 of taxable
value. The City realized a net increase of $1.8 million in revenues compared to prior year in the
general fund.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances, comply with
finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the City’s commitment to public
accountability. If you have questions about this report or would like to request additional
information, contact the City’s Financial Services Director at 4300 Northwest 36th Street,
Lauderdale Lakes, Florida 33319 or call (954) 535-2828.
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The summary of significant accounting policies for the City of Lauderdale Lakes, Florida (the
“City”) is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the basic financial statements. The
policies are considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the basic financial
statements.
The accompanying financial statements are presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for governmental units
as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other
authoritative sources. A summary of the more significant accounting policies is presented
below:
A.

Financial Reporting Entity
On June 22, 1961, the City was incorporated to carry on a centralized city government
pursuant to Special Act Chapter 61-2386 of the Florida Legislature. The City Charter was
readopted by the electorate pursuant to the creation of home rule powers for municipalities
in 1973. The City adopted its Code of Ordinances in 1992 and, thereafter, in March 1998,
adopted and ratified Ordinance No. 589 whereby the City is governed by a mayor/city
commission/city manager form of government. All legislative, regulatory and policy making
powers are vested in the City Commission, which is comprised of the Mayor and six elected
commissioners. All administrative powers are vested in the City Manager, who is appointed
by the Commission and acts as the City’s Chief Administrative Officer.
The City provides or contracts for the following services pursuant to the City Charter and
Ordinances: general government; public safety (police & fire); public works; parks and
recreation; social services; community development; infrastructure; and, planning and
zoning.
One of the objectives of financial reporting is to provide users of financial statements with a
basis for assessing the accountability of the elected officials. The definition of the financial
reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected officials are accountable to their
constituents for their actions. The financial reporting entity consists of the primary
government, organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The City is financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting majority of the
organization’s board and is able to impose its will on that organization; or, if there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or impose specific financial
burdens on the City. Although a legally separate entity, the Lauderdale Lakes Community
Redevelopment Agency (the “CRA”) is, in substance, part of the City’s operations and is
included as a blended component in the City’s special revenue funds. Because the City
Commission serves as the governing body of the CRA and is responsible for approving the
budget, the City is considered financially accountable for the CRA.
In 2001, the CRA was created, pursuant to Chapter 163 part III of the Florida Statutes for
the purpose of revitalizing and enhancing the City. The CRA is responsible for a
redevelopment area of nearly 550-acres within the City boundaries.
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B.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial statements.
The government-wide statements focus on the City as a whole, while the fund financial
statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can
be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the
usefulness of the information.
The Government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. They also
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City.
Governmental activities, which normally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which are financed in whole
or in part by fees charged to external parties.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment; and, grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment, including special assessments. General revenues consist of taxes and other
items, not included among program revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide and proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash-flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers
receivables collected within 60 days after year-end to be available and recognizes them as
revenues of the current year. Expenditures are generally recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, and therefore, have been recognized
as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and are available only when the City receives the related cash.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:


The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. All general tax revenues
and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some
other fund are accounted for in this fund. Activities recorded in this fund include
the operation of the City’s general service departments; street and highway
maintenance; public safety; fixed charges; and, capital improvement costs not
paid through other funds.



The Community Redevelopment Fund includes activities of the City’s blended
component unit (the CRA). It accounts for the resources accumulated for
infrastructure improvement and rehabilitation of deteriorated properties within the
City’s boundary.



The Fire Rescue Fund is used to account for monies generated by a fire rescue
assessment fee, which provides for fire rescue services, facilities and programs
within the City.



The Grant Fund is used to account for revenues received from various grant
programs. It accounts for activities related to the performance of grant fund
programs for federal, state and locally funded programs.



The 2005 GO Bond Capital Projects Fund accounts for the resources and
budgeting for the 2005 general obligation bond budgeted activities of the bond’s
related capital projects.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:


The Stormwater Utility Fund accounts for the infrastructure and operations of
stormwater management system, which is funded through user charges.



The Solid Waste/Recycling Fund accounts for the costs related to collection,
disposal, and recycling efforts in the City. Fees are charged on all residential
units and commercial property.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: fiduciary fund which is comprised of a
pension trust fund for the City’s former Fire Response and Emergency Medical Response
Service. The assets are held by the City for other parties and cannot be used to finance the
City’s operating programs.
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance.
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Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the stormwater, solid waste/recycling and the building
services funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the costs of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments
The City’s cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand
deposits, and
investments with the State Board of Administration (SBA) and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Resources of all funds, with the exception of the pension trust fund have been combined
into a pooled cash and investment system for the purpose of maximizing earnings. Interest
earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated monthly based upon equity of the
respective funds.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents mean short term,
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
2. Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds”
(i.e. the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. The receivable allowances are estimated based on historical trends.
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3. Property Taxes
Property values are assessed as of January 1, of each year, at which time taxes becomes
an enforceable lien on property. Tax bills are mailed by the Broward County Property
Appraiser’s Office for the City on or about October 1 of each year, and are payable with
discounts of up to 4% for early payment. Taxes become delinquent on April 1 of the year
following the year of assessment and State law provides for enforcement of collection of
property taxes by seizure of the personal property or by the sale of interest-bearing tax
certificates to satisfy unpaid property taxes.
Assessed values are established by the Broward County Property Appraiser. In November
1992, a Florida constitutional amendment was approved by the voters which provides for
limiting the increases in homestead property valuation for ad valorem tax purposes to a
maximum of 3% annually and also provides for reassessment of market values upon
changes in ownership. The County bills and collects all property taxes and remits them to
the City. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by Broward County are provided
for in the Laws of Florida. There were no material delinquent property taxes at September
30, 2012.
State statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate up to 10 mills ($10 per
$1,000 of assessed taxable valuation). The tax levy of the City is established by the City
Commission. The Broward County Property Appraiser then incorporates the City’s millage
into the total tax levy, which includes the County, the County School Board, and other
agency tax requirements. The millage rate assessed by the City for the year ended
September 30, 2012 was 9.500 mills ($9.500 per $1,000 of taxable assessed valuation).
Non ad valorem special assessments for the enterprise funds are separate and distinct from
the ad valorem tax levy as these amounts are assessed to recover costs associated with
providing services to the residents and businesses within the City.
4. Inventories
Inventories consist principally of materials and supplies held for consumption and are
recorded at cost for governmental funds and lower of average cost or market for proprietary
funds. In the government funds, the cost of inventories are recorded as expenditures at the
time of purchase, while in the proprietary funds, the cost of inventories are recorded as
expenses when consumed. In the governmental funds, reported inventories are offset by a
fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable
resources.
5. Restricted Assets
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties
for use for a specific program or purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.
The community redevelopment agency cash is the only restricted assets for the purposes
established within the CRA’s plan.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is City policy to use
unrestricted resources first, and then restricted resources as needed.
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6. Capital Assets
Capital assets - property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City defines capital
assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year. Purchased or constructed assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset
or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated
useful lives:
Estimated
Useful Life
(in years)

Type of Assets

Buildings

30

Building Improvements
Infrastructure Systems
Equipment and Vehicles

30
20 – 50
5

7. Compensated Absences
It is City policy to permit employees to accrue earned but unused vacation and sick time.
Effective June 2008 Sick leave time payout upon termination for employees was modified as
follows:
10 years in service 25% of the value
20 years in service 50% of the value
Each fiscal year an employee may elect to convert a minimum of ten (10) hours of accrued
vacation leave time to cash out at a rate of 75% of its accrued value if the buy-back is
requested between October 1 through October 31 of the applicable fiscal year in which such
buy-back occurs and at a rate of 60% of its accrued value if the buy-back is requested
between November 1 through September 30 of such fiscal year. Therefore Note 8 on page
30 of this report reflects fewer employees meet the criteria for years of service in order to be
apart of the calculation for unused vacation and sick pay to be paid out at a discount. Note:
For year ended September 30, 2012, the City did not implement the buyback program due
to budgetary constraints.
Vacation and sick pay benefits are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements.
A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignation and retirements.
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8. Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures.
9. Nature and Purpose Classifications of Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.
Amounts that are restricted to specific purposes either by a) constraints placed on the use of
resources by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation are classified as
restricted fund balances. Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by the City Commission through an ordinance or resolution are
classified as committed fund balances. Amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to
be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed are classified as
assigned fund balances. Assignments are made by City management based on
Commission direction. Non-spendable fund balances include amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to
be maintained intact. Unassigned fund balance represents fund balance that has not been
assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
purposes within the general fund.
10. Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties
for use for a specific purpose. Designation of fund balance represents tentative
management plans that are subject to change.
11. Deferred Revenues
Deferred revenues include amounts collected before revenue recognition criteria are met
and receivables which, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, are measurable, but
not yet available. The deferred revenues consist primarily of license and permit revenues
collected in advance for subsequent fiscal year.
12. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Although these estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current events
and actions it may undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results.
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13. Net Assets
Net assets of the government-wide and proprietary funds are categorized as invested in
capital assets net of related debt, restricted or unrestricted. The first category represents
net assets related to capital assets net of any outstanding debt associated with the capital
assets.
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, restricted net assets are
used to indicate the segregation of a portion of net assets equal to certain assets that are
restricted by requirements of revenue bonds and other externally imposed constraints or by
legislation in excess of the related liabilities payable from restricted assets. There were no
restricted net assets as of September 30, 2012.

NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
At September 30, 2012, the following funds reported deficits in fund balances (all deficit
balances were for governmental funds):

Fund

Deficit

Grant fund
Alzheimer Care Center fund
Project construction fund
Capital projects fund
Impact fee fund

320,752
435,036
218,797
15,991
246,979

NOTE 3– DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
For accounting and investment purposes, the City maintains a cash and investment pool for
use by all City funds. This gives the City the ability to invest large amounts of idle cash for
short periods of time and to maximize earning potential. Each fund type’s portion of this
pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as cash and equity in pooled cash and
investments. Income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated to the respective
funds based on average daily balances.
A. Cash Deposits
As of September 30, 2012, the City did not overdraw on its cash. Because of overdraft
protection plan the City’s cash overdrafts are paid by the financial institution.
All deposits with financial institutions are fully insured or collateralized as required by the
City Commission. The deposits are covered by federal depository insurance and, for the
amount in excess of such federal depository insurance, by the State of Florida’s Public
Deposits Act (the “Act”). Provisions of the Act require that public deposits may only be made
at qualified public depositories. The Act requires each qualified public depository to deposit
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with the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral as
determined by the provisions of the Act. In the event of a failure by a qualified public
depository, losses, in excess of federal depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of
the securities pledged by the defaulting depository, are assessed against the other qualified
public depositories of the same type as the depository in default.
B. Investments
Florida Statutes, Chapter 218.415, authorize the City to establish its own investment policy
by ordinance. The investment ordinance allows up to 100% investment in the following
instruments, subject to maturity limitations: local government surplus trust fund (the “SBA”);
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) registered money market funds with the
highest quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency; savings accounts and
certificates of deposit in state-certified qualified public depositories; direct obligations of the
U.S. Treasury; and, securities issued by federal agencies and instrumentalities. Up to 10%
may be invested in common stocks, subject to quality restrictions.
The City’s investments were insignificant to the individual fund assets and pooled cash
balances at September 30, 2012 and were comprised solely of amounts deposited with the
SBA.
NOTE 4 – RECEIVABLES
The City uses a third party to manage the collection process for receivables associated with
its contracted service provider, Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”). With the exception of
fire inspection fees and occupational licenses, EMS receivables and the corresponding
allowance for doubtful accounts are recorded in the General Fund. The receivables and
allowances for fire inspection fees and occupational licenses are recorded in the Building
Services and Fire Rescue funds, respectively. For the year ended September 30, 2012, the
City reviewed its policies and procedures governing the collection and write-off process and
collaboratively determined that EMS receivables from FY09 to FY11 (approximately $7
million) were doubtful and uncollectable. The EMS amount noted (net of allowance) in the
chart below reflects the City’s true and collectable receivables as of the year ended
September 30, 2012.
Receivables at September 30, 2012, in aggregate, are comprised of the following amounts,
net of allowances:
General
Receivables:
Utility
Certificate of Use
Business Tax Receipts
Alzheimer Care
Emergency Medical Service
Fire Inspections
Other
Total

$

$

595,761
12,138
11,052
308,052
41,552
968,554

Fire Rescue
$

$

232,615
232,615

CRA
$

87,620
$ 87,620

Non major
$

100,862
$ 100,862

Remainder of page left Blank Intentionally

33

Total
$

595,761
12,138
11,052
100,862
308,052
232,615
129,172
$ 1,389,652

CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Beginning
Governmental Activities

Balance

Increases

Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total assets not being Depreciated

17,700,549
13,306,603
31,007,152

125,602
125,602

Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total Assets being Depreciated

7,163,178
2,943,388
23,937,010
34,043,576

6,686,743
7,100
4,940,807
11,634,650

(2,972,352)
(2,455,146)
(10,375,163)
(15,802,661)

(189,613)
(143,944)
(210,100)
(543,657)

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciated
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated (Net)

18,240,915

Governmental Activities Capital Assets (Net)

49,248,067

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Construction in Progress
Total assets not being Depreciated
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Automobiles
Machinery and Equipment
Storm Drainage
Canals
Box Culverts
Total Assets being Depreciated

11,216,595

Ending

Adjustments

Balance

(10,044,246)
(10,044,246)

17,700,549
3,387,959
21,088,508

0

13,849,921
2,950,488
28,877,817
45,678,226

0

(3,161,965)
(2,599,090)
(10,585,263)
(16,346,318)

0

29,331,908

(10,044,246)

50,420,417

0
0

0
0

456,514
205,569
1,380,498
2,886,141
252,510
5,181,232

115,704

(402,115)
(167,379)
(605,493)
(1,327,472)
(217,482)
(2,719,941)

(18016)
(14625)
(16290)
(59971)
(4246)
(113,147)

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated (Net)

2,461,291

2,556

Governmental Activities Capital Assets (Net)

2,461,291

2,556

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Automobiles
Machinery and Equipment
Storm Drainage
Canals
Box Culverts
Total Accumulated Depreciated

Decreases &
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0

456,514
209,593
1,387,738
2,990,581
252,510
5,296,936

0

(420,131)
(182,004)
(621,783)
(1,387,443)
(221,727)
(2,833,087)

4,024
7,240
104,440

2,463,847
0

2,463,849
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the government as follows:
Governmental Activities
Culture and Recreation
Public Safety
General Government
Highways and Streets
Social Services
Economic & Physical Environment

$

$

248,415
28,958
201,904
38,229
21,044
5,107
543,657

$

103,089
10,058
113,147

Business-Type Activities
Stormwater
Building Services

Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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NOTE 6 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund balances and transfers at and during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012
are presented below.
A. Interfund Receivables and Payables –
The composition of interfund balances at September 30, 2012, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:
Receivable Fund
General Fund

Payable Fund
Grant
Community Redevelopment
Impact Fee
Alzheimer Care Center
Capital Project
Capital Project

2005 GO Construction
Total Governmental Activities

$

$

Total
884,142
119,287
246,979
436,155
23,503
218,797
1,928,863

Advances from/to other funds:
Receivable Fund

Payable Fund Amount

Purpose

Community Redevelopment Agency General Fund $2,468,031 Supplement funding

Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT
The following schedule details the City’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year
ended September 30, 2012:
Governmental Activities
Bonds and Note Payables:
General Obligation Debt
Revenue Bonds
Note Payable
Note Payable - CRA
Total Bonds and Note Payable
Other Liabilities:
Capital Lease
BSO Repayment Agreement
Compensated Absences
Total Other Liabilities
Total Long-Term Debt-Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Note Payable
Total Note Payable
Other Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
Total Other Liabilities
Total Long-Term Debt-Business-Type Activities

Balance
9/30/2011

Additions

$ 12,537,709
3,815,000
637,439
9,105,996
26,096,144

$

$

Reductions
-

$

565,719
135,000
146,232
506,426
1,353,377

Adjustment
$

-

184,551
9,171,129
436,342
9,792,022
35,888,166

-

69,207
1,000,000
87,269
1,156,476
2,509,852

-

1,782,827
1,782,827

-

36,570
36,570
1,819,397

1,219
1,219
1,219

$

$

Amount
Due Within
One Year

Balance
9/30/2012
$

11,971,990
3,680,000
491,207
8,599,571
24,742,768

$

-

115,344
8,171,129
349,073
8,635,546
33,378,314

69,207
1,150,000
69,815
1,289,022
2,648,353

213,768
213,768

-

1,569,059
1,569,059

129,053
129,053

1,219
1,219
214,987

-

36,570
36,570
1,605,629

1,219
1,219
130,272

$

$

$

General Obligation Bond
Obligation bonds provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
projects within a five-year period. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and
pledge of full faith and credit of the government. General obligation bonds outstanding at
year-end are as follows:
A. 2005 General Obligation Bonds (SunTrust Bank)

On March 25, 2005, the City entered into a loan agreement the amount of $6,697,503
with SunTrust Bank for the purchase of the 2005 General Obligation Bonds. The total
bonds approved and authorized by the voters was not to exceed $15,000,000.
Payments are made semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year from 2005 to
2025.
Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2025

Principal

Interest

Total

265,000
280,000
295,000
310,000
1,825,000
2,085,000
$5,060,000

191,808
181,440
170,592
159,072
377,016
430,728
$1,510,656

456,808
461,440
465,592
469,072
2,202,016
2,515,728
$6,570,656

Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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B. General Obligation Bond, Series 2007 (Bank of America)

The final draw from the 2005 General Obligation was accomplished. The City issued
$8,302,497 in General Obligation Bonds which was not to exceed $15,000,000
authorized by the voters. The debt is being used to finance various capital improvement
projects throughout the City. The bonds shall mature not later than January 15, 2028.
The Series 2007 Bonds shall bear interest at a fixed rate equal to 8.5% and payments
shall be made semiannually.
Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:

Principal

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2025
2026-2028

$

300,719
315,942
331,936
348,741
2,027,100
2,594,848
1,558,423
$ 7,477,709

Interest

Total

282,072
270,472
258,284
245,479
551,283
705,686
423,824
$ 2,737,100

$
582,791
$
586,414
$
590,220
$
594,220
$ 2,578,383
$ 3,300,534
$ 1,982,247
$10,214,809

$

Revenue Bonds
C. Florida Municipal Loan Council, Series 2005C (Deutsche Bank)

On July 2, 2005, the City entered into a loan agreement the amount of $4,105,000 with
the Florida Municipal Loan Council, Inc., for the partial refunding of the FMLC Series
2000A Bonds. The balance of $ 4,105,000 requires semi-annual payments on October
1st and April 1st of each year from 2005 to 2030. The annual principal and interest
payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2025

Principal

Interest

Total

265,000
280,000
295,000
310,000
1,825,000
2,085,000
$5,310,000

191,808
181,440
170,592
159,072
377,016
430,728
$1,712,160

456,808
461,440
465,592
469,072
4,717,744
2,515,728
$7,022,160

Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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Notes Payables
D. SunTrust Bank Note Payable, Series 2012

On February 17, 2000, the City entered into two loan agreements with SunTrust Bank, a
local financial institution for approximately $993,000 to finance certain capital projects
and major equipment purchases. The notes payable are secured by non ad valorem
revenues of the City. The first Note of $418,700 bears interest at 5.211% with principal
and interest due over five years in quarterly installments of approximately $26,000.
Approximately $182,000 of the $418,700 note was allocated to and was accounted for in
the Stormwater Utility Enterprise Fund. The remaining proceeds of $236,700 were
allocated to the Capital Projects Fund. The second Note in the amount of $574,200
bears interest at 5.37% with principal and interest payments of $22,000 due quarterly,
over a ten year period.
In March 2004, the City entered into a new Note agreement with SunTrust Bank that
paid off the two Notes, Series 2000A and Series 2000B. The resulting new Note is
known as SunTrust Bank Note Series 2004.
On March 4, 2004, the City entered into a loan agreement with SunTrust Bank, a local
financial institution for a revolving line of credit up to $3,875,840 to refinance Series
2000A ($71,001), Series 2000B ($427,839) Notes and provide additional funds for
various projects. The proceeds of the loan were to be drawn down in three (3) parts. A
first draw of $2,365,840 to occur at closing; a second draw of $755,000 to occur in Year
1 and a third draw of $755,000 to occur in year 2. The initial interest rate is based upon
a variable rate calculated as 66% of 6-month LIBOR rate. The loan may convert to a
fixed rate upon completion of the draw period. Principal and Interest is due annually.
The original draw down of $2,365,840 was divided between governmental operations
and the Stormwater Enterprise Fund.
On August 28, 2012, the City refinanced, refunded, and extended Note 2004 for five (5)
years, commencing on October 1, 2012 and maturing on October 1, 2017. The resulting
new Note is known as SunTrust Bank Note Series 2012. The interest rate is 4.19%
commencing on December 1, 2012 with an automatic interest rate reduction when the
City achieves a balanced budget at the close of the fiscal year. The downward rate
adjustment schedule is as follows: The first adjusted rate is 3.75% per annum; the
second adjusted rate is 3.25% per annum; and future adjusted rates would be variable
equal to one-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.0 per annum and
never exceed 3.25% per annum.

Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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The annual principal and interest payments on the SunTrust Bank, Series 2012 are as
follows:
Fiscal Year Ending
September 30,

Governmental Activities
Principal
Interest

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Total Outstanding

$146,232
80,312
83,743
87,319
91,038
148,795
$637,439

$

56,614
35,953
32,375
28,646
24,758
$178,346

Business-Type Activities
Principal
Interest
$

213,768
129,053
134,565
140,311
146,287
1,018,843
$ 1,782,827

$

90,973
57,773
52,024
46,032
39,782
$ 286,584

Total
Principal
$

360,000
209,365
218,308
227,630
237,325
1,167,638
$ 2,420,266

Interest
$

147,587
93,726
84,399
74,678
64,540
$ 464,930

Notes Payable
E.

Sun Trust Bank CRA Line of Credit, Series 2004

The City had a $9,000,000 line-of-credit with SunTrust bank that would bear interest at
the “London Inter-Bank Offering Rate” (LIBOR) plus .83. This rate is adjusted on a
monthly basis.
The line-of credit is secured by a pledge of the Community
Redevelopment Agency’s (CRA) ad-valorem tax increment and revenues generated
from the CRA property lease and contain covenants related to debt service coverage
and a deadline to submit the audited financial statements to the bank. The NonRevolving line of credit was issued on November 12, 2004, and matures on March 26,
2008.
As of September 30, 2008 the Note was modified extending the maturity date to June
11, 2018. The interest on the Note is fixed at 4.106% per annum and payments are due
June 11 and December 11 each year.

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2018

Principal
60,571
63,083
65,701
68,426
222,788
$480,569

Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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F. SunTrust Bank CRA Line of Credit, Series 2007

The City’s CRA entered in to an agreement April 13, 2008 with SunTrust Bank for a
$10,000,000 line-of-credit not to exceed three years that would bear a variable rate of 1month “London Inter-Bank Offering Rate (LIBOR) rate plus 80 basis points and the
interest rate will adjust every 30 days. Each draw or pay down on the Line of Credit is
required to be a minimum of $500,000 or at the discretion of the Bank for the purpose of
Land acquisition/redevelopment within CRA. Proceeds of the note in the amount of
$23,000 were advanced pursuant to the agreement. On April 2010 the City’s CRA drew
down $6,296,815 for land acquisitions.
Principal and interest payments are due October 15 and April 15, and the final payment
is due on April 15, 2025.
Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2025

Principal

Interest

Total

303,089
318,743
335,207
352,520
2,055,270
2,643,782
$6,008,611

294,895
278,841
261,958
244,203
541,584
696,662
$2,318,143

597,984
597,584
597,165
596,723
2,596,854
3,340,444
$8,326,754

Notes Payable
G. Sun Trust Bank CRA Line of Credit, Series 2008

The City’s CRA entered into an agreement on June 11, 2008 with SunTrust Bank for a
$3,055,000 line of credit with nominal interest rate of 4.52% with semiannual payments
that begins June 11, 2009 through December 11, 2024. The line of credit was
established to assist with CRA’s portion of the joint project with Broward County for the
construction of the Library and the Educational & Cultural Center.
Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2024

Principal

Interest

154,671
161,251
168,110
175,263
994,712
959,241
$2,613,248

108,407
101,827
94,967
87,815
210,631
203,120
$806,767
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Total
263,078
263,078
263,078
263,078
1,205,343
1,162,361
$3,420,016
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Capital Lease
The City entered into a capital lease agreement to purchase air-conditioning
improvements and pay off the prior lease agreement covering lighting and airconditioning equipment with Key Government Finance, Inc. as lessees for financing the
air conditioning improvements. The lease agreement qualify as capital lease for
accounting purposes and, therefore have been recorded at the present value of future
lease payments as of the inception date with monthly payments of $5,767. Final
payment is due May 28, 2014.
The future (minimum) lease obligations and the net present value of capital lease
payments as of September 30, 2012 are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending
September 30,

Amount

2012
2013
2014
Total minimum future lease payments

69,207
69,207
46,137
184,551

Less amount representing interest

20,696

Present value of minimum lease payments

$ 163,855

Repayment Agreement
Broward Sheriff’s Office Police and Fire Services
During fiscal year 2011 the City renegotiated an agreement with the Broward Sheriff’s
Office (BSO) for police and fire services. The previous contract expired in 2009. The
City has accepted BSO’s claim of $1,523,736 which was derived from the increase of
the contract billings for cost allocations and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
charges; these costs were not included in the original contract.
The City has entered into a five year repayment agreement for the outstanding obligation
due to BSO in the amount of $9,171,129. The total amount due represents repayment
for services rendered and OPEB costs for the period from October 1, 2009 through
September 30, 2011.
BSO will provide the breakdown of principle and applied interest and the resulting
outstanding balance within 30 days of Fiscal Year close and provide a revised
outstanding balance schedule which shall be deemed an amendment to the repayment
agreement. Bi-Annual payments are made during January and July beginning in 2012
and continuing through 2016 based on the agreed upon payment for each fiscal year as
adjusted for accrued and paid interest and the principle.
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The interest rate will be calculated using the Annual County Pooled-Cash Rate, not to
exceed3%. Payments are due January and July annually, and the final payment is due
July 2016:
Police:
Fire (Including EMS):
Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

$4,888,354.47
$4,282,774.82
Annual Gross
Payment Amount
1,000,000
1,150,000
1,300,000
1,450,000
4,271,129
$9,171,129

NOTE 8 – RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort, theft, and destruction of assets,
error and omission, injury to employees, and natural disasters. The City carries commercial
insurance to mitigate the loss related to these risks. There were no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from the prior year. Settled claims resulting from such risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
NOTE 9 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A. Grants
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.
The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
B. Contingencies
The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. The outcome of these lawsuits cannot
presently be determined. In the opinion of the City Attorney, the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse impact to the financial condition of the City.
NOTE 10 – PENSIONS
Depending on their date of hire, the City’s employees participate in one of the State of
Florida Retirement System (the “FRS”) plans or may participate in one of the City’s defined
contribution plans as created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”), Section
401(a).
A. Florida Retirement System
City employees hired prior to January 1, 1996; participate in one of the State of Florida
Retirement System (the “FRS”) plans. The FRS was established in 1970, by
consolidating several employee retirement systems. All eligible employees, as defined
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by the State, who were hired after 1970 and those employed prior to 1970 that elect to
be enrolled, are covered by the System. The FRS plans a cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit plan while those hired subsequently participate in the FRS
defined contribution retirement plan, which covers substantially all of the City’s full-time
employees. As of September 30, 2012, the FRS is an open plan.
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by Chapter 121, Florida
Statutes and any amendments thereto can be made only by an act of the Florida
Legislature. Employees in the FRS may participate in either the Public Employee
Optional Retirement Program (the “Investment Plan”), a defined contribution retirement
program, or in the defined benefit retirement plan (the “Pension Plan”).
Eligible members of the Investment Plan are vested after one year of service and are
directed to choose their investment product with a third party administrator selected by
the Florida State Board of Administration.
The FRS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentage of annual coverage payroll, as
adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due based upon plan
assumptions. Employer contribution rates are established by state law as a percentage
of payrolls. Employer contribution rates are determined using the entry-age actuarial
cost method. The consulting actuary recommends rates based on the annual valuation,
but actual contribution rates are established by the Florida Legislature.
Employees participating in the Pension Plan have their benefits computed on the basis
of age, average final compensation and service credit. Benefits under the Pension Plan
vest after six years of service. Employees who retire at or after age 62, with ten years of
credited service, are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. A
post-retirement health insurance subsidy is also provided to eligible retired employees
through the FRS defined benefits retirement plan.
Summary of Florida Retirement System Contributions,
Covered Payroll and Percentage of Covered Payroll
FY 2011
FY 2010
FY 2012
Covered payroll
$
847,930
$
964,070
$
674,998
Contributions

$

49,322

% of Covered Payroll

$

7.61%

86,895
10.25%

$

99,025
10.27%

The City is required to contribute amounts necessary to pay benefits when due as
defined by State Statute. Such contribution requirements for employers ranged between
4.91% and 5.18% of gross salaries during fiscal year 2012. For the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2012, the participating employees contributed a mandatory 3% of their
gross salaries.
A copy of the FRS’ annual report can be obtained by writing to the Division of
Retirement, Cedars Executive Center, 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-1560.
Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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B. Defined Contribution Plans
1. John Hancock
The John Hancock plan is a defined contribution plan created pursuant to Section
401(a) of the IRC and City Ordinance 98-78. The plan is administered by Benefits
Outsource, Inc., a third party administrator. All employees are eligible to participate
in the plan, subject to the specified employment period. Participants hired prior to
October 1, 2007 vested after one year of continuous service and could elect, but
were not required, to contribute up to an amount not to exceed what is allowable by
law. Employees hired on or after October 1, 2007, vest at the rate of 20% per year
and will be fully vested after five years. The City contributes an amount that is
determined as part of the budgetary process. These participants may elect to
contribute an amount not to exceed what is allowable by law.
The City Commission may amend the provisions of the plan, which is held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Consequently, the
City has no fiduciary responsibility and does not include the plan assets in its
financial statements. For fiscal year ending September 30, 2012, employee and
employer contributions equaled $11,350 and $21,226.15, respectively.
2. ICMA
ICMA is an IRC, Section 401(a), retirement savings Money Purchase Plan as
administered by the ICMA Corporation. The plan was created pursuant to City
Ordinance 98-97. For general, professional and managerial employees hired after
January 1, 2008, members vest at 20% per year and are fully vested after five years.
The City contributes an amount that is determined as part of the budgetary process.
Participants may elect to contribute an amount not to exceed what is allowable by
law.
C. Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
The City of Lauderdale Lakes, Florida provides Post Employment Benefits Other than
Pensions (OPEB) to employees as mandated by Florida Statutes 112.0801. The City has no
formal plan that administers the City’s post-employment health, dental, and vision coverage
to eligible individuals and includes all regular employees of the City who retire from active
service and are eligible for retirement or disability benefits. The retirees and their spouses
and dependents pay 100% of the blended premium rates to obtain their elected health, dental
and vision benefits. The blended rates provide an implicit subsidy to them based on an
actuarial basis, their current and future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the
employer. As of September 30, 2012 the City had an actuarial analysis conducted and the
results are contained in this report.
NOTE 11 – FINANCIAL CONDITION
The City administration performed its due diligence and reviewed the criteria set forth by the
Auditor General to determine if one of the conditions have been met according to the Financial
Emergency Guidelines. The City of Lauderdale Lakes did not meet any of the conditions set
forth in the Financial Emergency Guidelines.
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NOTE 12 – MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events to determine if events or transactions occurring
through March 14, 2013, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, require
potential adjustments or disclosure in the financial statements.
NOTE 13 – BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
The budgetary information is presented as part of the required supplementary information as
mandated by GASB Statement No. 34 “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments”.

Remainder Left Blank Intentionally
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes
Franchise Fees
Utility Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest
Grants and Other Revenue
Total Revenues

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

6,461,457
2,602,151
1,794,360
2,956,101
569,120
260,000
292,306
5,000
809,108
15,749,603

6,625,000
2,665,891
1,801,860
2,922,248
464,344
150,000
225,000
5,000
783,000
15,642,343

6,627,873
3,256,018
2,025,466
2,925,123
811,722
148,236
316,005
6,420
6,927,142
23,044,006

2,873
590,127
223,606
2,875
347,378
(1,764)
91,005
1,420
6,144,142
7,401,663

294,831
296,640
224,712
365,010
521,317
2,871,117
171,810
16,500
4,761,937

343,236
225,000
220,339
331,028
566,449
2,212,032
152,159
15,500
4,065,742.99

298,372
208,615
205,431
307,680
525,822
2,077,215
135,156
7,377
3,765,668

44,864
16,385
14,909
23,348
40,627
134,818
17,002
8,123
300,075

Public Safety:
Police
EMS (Fire Services)
Total Public Safety

5,916,168
2,200,000
8,116,168

6,076,168
2,200,000
8,276,168

6,124,340
2,300,611
8,424,951

(48,172)
(100,611)
(148,783)

Public Works:
Maintenance
Total Public Works

1,905,043
1,905,043

1,703,624
1,703,624

1,421,438
1,421,438

282,186
282,186

677,031

799,032

552,816

246,216

84,574

84,598

75,321

9,277

204,850
204,850

68,650
68,650

261,624
261,624

(192,974)
(192,974)

15,749,603

387,394
257,134
15,642,343

1,054,757
238,056
534,792
16,329,422

(667,363)
19,078

-

-

6,714,584

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government:
Mayor and Commission
City Attorney
City Clerk
City Manager
Finance and Information Technology
General Administration
Human Resources
Boards
Total General Government

Culture and Recreation:
Social Services Programs
Physical Environment:
Community Development
Total Physical Enviroment

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay:
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

(4,853,500)

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

$
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1,861,084

(152,287)

7,553,950
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FIRE RESCUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Revenues:
Special Assessments
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety - Fire
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources and (Uses)
Administrative Fees
Contingency

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing sources over Expenditures
and Other uses:

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

4,128,181.00
612,781.00

4,128,181.00
612,781.00

4,077,294.57
297,982.66

200.00
4,741,162.00

200.00
4,741,162.00

2,260,816.31
6,636,093.54

4,600,000.00

4,606,094.00

4,514,577.55

91,516.45

37,532.00
3,630.00
4,641,162.00

31,438.00
3,630.00
4,641,162.00

936.00
608.70
4,516,122.25

30,502.00
3,021.30
125,039.75

100,000.00

100,000.00

2,119,971.29

1,769,891.79

75,000.00
25,000.00
100,000.00

75,000.00
25,000.00
100,000.00

-

ACTUAL

-

-

2,119,971.29

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

(1,735,562)

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

$
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384,409

(50,886.43)
(314,798.34)
2,260,616.31
1,894,931.54

(75,000.00)
(25,000.00)
(100,000.00)

1,869,891.79
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BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GRANT FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

Revenues:
Public Safety
Intergovernmental-CDBG
Intergovernmental-State
Cultural and Recreation
Miscellaneous - Other
Total Revenues

82,112.00
82,112.00

82,112.00
20,800.00
135,750.00
238,662.00

80,704.50
14,130.40
129,283.65
60,162.45
284,281.00

(1,407.50)
(6,669.60)
(6,466.35)
60,162.45
45,619.00

Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety
Economic development
Culture and recreation
Social Services
Total Expenditures

82,112.00
82,112.00

156,550.00
82,112.00
238,662.00

114.06
1,429.10
140,213.14
76,205.70
217,962.00

(114.06)
(1,429.10)
16,336.86
5,906.30
20,700.00

66,319.00

66,319.00

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

-

-

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

(387,071)

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

$
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(320,752)
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BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Tax Increment
Interest Income
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous - Other
Total Revenues

$

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

1,428,140
50,500
366,709
1,845,349

1,428,140
50,500
125,000
366,709
1,970,349

$

1,409,887
1,470
308,137
1,719,494

780,145
10,000

777,645
135,000

706,381
126,809

925,000
55,204
1,770,349

619,550
360,654
1,892,849

506,426
430,355
1,769,971

75,000

77,500

50,000.00
25,000.00
75,000.00

50,000
27,500
77,500

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)
$

(18,253)
(49,030)
183,137
(366,709)
(250,855)

Expenditures:
Current:
Economic Development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources and (Uses)
Administrative Fees
Contingency

Deficiency of Revenues and other
Financing sources over Expenditures
and Other Uses:

$

-

-

$

$

50 -

(127,977)

2,500.00
2,500.00

(47,977)
3,391,358

-

113,124
(69,701)
122,878

(50,477)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

71,264
8,191

3,343,381

75,000.00
25,000.00
100,000.00

$

(27,977)

CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY INFORMATION
The City follows Chapter 80-274 of the State of Florida Statutes and its charter in establishing
the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements. The City maintains legally adopted
budgets for the General Fund, on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, (GAAP).
During the month of July of each year, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a
proposed operating budget for the Fiscal Year commencing October 1st. This budget
includes proposed expenditures as well as the expected means to finance them.
1. The Commission holds workshops, required public hearings, and a final budget must
be prepared and adopted no later than October 1st.
2. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an appropriation
ordinance.
3. The appropriation budget is prepared and adopted by fund, function, and department.
Budgets are monitored within each department at the account level by the respective
department head and the Financial Services Director. The City’s department heads
may make transfers of appropriations within a department with approval of the City
Manager and Financial Services Director. Transfers of appropriations between
departments require the additional approval of the Commission. The legal level of
budgetary control (i.e. the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations)
is the department level.
Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund
balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

NOTE 2 – EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Excess
Expenditure Over
Budget
48,172

Department
Police
Fire Rescue (EMS)
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100,611

COMBINING AND
INDIVIDUAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND
SCHEDULES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular
purposes.
Impact Fee Fund – This fund is used to account for impact fees collected in accordance with the City’s development code.
Alzheimer Care Center Fund – This fund was created to account for revenue and expenditure activity of the Alzheimer
Care Center. Most revenues for the operation of the Center derive from grant and foundation assistance.
Minor Home Repair Fund – This fund is used to account for community development block grant this is funding the
revitalization project for housing within the government.
Law Enforcement Trust Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues received from law enforcement forfeitures and
seizures which are restricted for use for law enforcement purposes.
Transportation (Gas Tax) Fund – This fund is used to account for Gas Tax money received from the State. This money
is restricted to transportation, street, and road related expenses.
Code Enforcement Trust Fund - This fund is used to assist qualifying residents with resources to remedy minor code
violations.

Capital Projects Fund
Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those
financed by proprietary funds.
Capital Projects Fund – This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.
Project Construction Fund – This fund is used for purpose of budgeting general capital improvement projects with
costs of $25,000 and over.

Debt Service Fund
2005 Bond Debt Service Fund – to account for the accumulation of taxes collected through the property taxes used
to pay principal and interest payments on the 2005 Bond.
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass-Through Program from:
State of Florida Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through - Broward County
CDBG Service Area 6 - Mast Arms and Traffic Signals
CDBG Service Area 7 - Alzheimers Center Hurricane Improvement Project

Community Development Block Grant - 37th Year Senior Quality of Life
Community Development Block Grant - 37th Year Senior Transportation
Community Development Block Grant - 37th Year Youth Leadership Program
Community Development Block Grant - 37th Year Minor Home Repair
Subtotal in-direct programs
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-Through Program from:
State of Florida Passed through Broward County
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III-B Grants for Supportive
Services and Senior Centers
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-Through Program from:
Florida Department of Agriculture
Summer Food Program
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

Federal
CFDA
Number

Pass-Through
Entity Identifying
Number

14.228
14.228

08-DB-D3-11-16-01-A06
08-DB-D3-11-16-01-A06

14.218
14.218
14.218
14.218

Federal
Expenditures

500,000
625,000

500,000
625,000

B-09-UC-12-001
B-09-UC-12-001
B-09-UC-12-001
B-09-UC-12-001

18,005
45,082
12,668
75,755
1,200,755

18,162
49,712
12,508
322,733
403,115
1,528,115

93.044

JA010-25-2012

52,055
52,055

52,055
52,055

10.559

04-0176

15,113
15,113

12,288
12,288

1,267,924

1,592,458

$

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
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Federal
Award

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

FY2012 SEFA Schedule

CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
federal grant activity of the City of Lauderdale Lakes, Florida (the “City”) under the accrual basis
of accounting. The information in this s chedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of the Office of Management a nd Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants and contracts entered into directly
between the City and agencies and depart ments of the federal government and pass-through
agencies, as applicable. The City did not transfer awards to subrecipients during the fiscal y ear
ending September 30, 2012.
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
Matters that are repeated in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses



2011-02 - Year End Closing Entries (revised and included in 2012-01, 2012-4, 2012-5)
2011-05 - Bank Reconciliations(revised and included in 2012-02).

Matters that are not repeated in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses




2011-01 - Deteriorating Financial Condition
2011-03 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
2011-04 - Annual Budget Process

PRIOR YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
There were no federal awards findings and questioned costs reported in fiscal year ended September 30,
2011.
PRIOR YEAR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS
N/A.
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CITY OF LAUDERDALE LAKES, FLORIDA
Summary Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of Auditors’ report issued:

Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:



Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
Not considered to be material weakness(es)?

__ ___Yes __ X __No
___ __Yes

X__ No

_____Yes ___X__ No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:



Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
Not considered to be material weakness(es)?

_____Yes ___X__ No
____Yes _ __X__ No

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
federal programs and state projects:

Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

_____ Yes __X__ No

Identification of major programs:

Federal Program

Federal CFDA

Federal Programs
Community Development Block Grant

14.218

Community Development Block Grant

14.228

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
Federal Programs:

$300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee for federal award programs?
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____ Yes __X__ No

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES
2012-01 Year End Closing Entries
Condition
We noted during the cour se of the aud it that balan ce sheet accounts which include accru ed liabilities, capital
assets and due to/from in all funds reflected on the respective trial balances were not properly reconciled to reflect
the appropriate balances as of year-end.
Criteria
Prudent policies include a for mal closing process with supervisory Finance D epartment personnel being
responsible for the review and evaluation of transactions and balances recorded.
Cause
The cause of the conditions is the lack of a formal cl
finance personnel.

osing process which i ncorporates a thorough review by

Effect
Formal closing procedures includes the following: reve
rsing prior years accruals, d etermination that all
transactions have been recorded and posted, reconcili ng general ledger acco unts with subsidiary ledgers and
making necessary adjustments, running/print ing year-end reports in order to have a record of historical
transactions for the year (they will be useful during the audit), etc. Lack of the implementation of these procedures
may result in misstatements in the financial statements.
Recommendation
The City should consider developing formal y ear end closing procedures. These procedures should include
timetables outlining appropriate due dates and instructi ons for schedules that should be prepared. The closing
procedures should be documented in a formal checklist that indicates the individual responsible for the task, when
it is due to be co mpleted and when it is acco mplished. We believe that a review and evaluation of transactions
recorded at year end should be performed to ensure the validity of amounts recorded, as well as reduce audit time.
The implementation of form al procedures will reduce the need for num erous adjustments to financial records
during the audit process, delay in the preparation of financial reports needed by management and the auditors.
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
Management accepts the finding and reco mmendation. Management will establish procedures in the current
period to address the following issues:
 The City will continue to strengthen its form al year end closing processes and procedures, which
incorporate a thorough review of all accounts to ensure all transactions have been recorded and reconciled
in a proper manner and timeframe.
 The year-end closing process will include timelines and checklists for the Financial Services Department.
The new process will r equire the ti mely recording of year-end closing entries into the City ’s Financial
Accounting System.
The City will endeavor to upgrade the City’s Financial Accounting System and conduct employee training to
ensure a more efficient and effective year-end financial reporting process
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED)
2012-02 Bank Reconciliations
Condition
During the course of the audit we noted the City did not reconcile its pooled cash bank account properl y nor was
it completed in a timely manner. Not reconciling the ac counts on a monthly basis means that errors or other
problems might not be recognized and resolved on a tim ely basis. We also noted an unreconciled difference of
approximately $125,000. This difference was corrected by the City after the fiscal year end.
Criteria
Timely preparation of complete and accurate bank reconc iliations is a key to maintaining adequate control over
both cash receipts and disbursem ents. Bank accou nts should be reconciled on a m onthly basis which would
provide management a useful tool to monitor the City’s cash position. The purpose of the bank reconciliation is to
prevent and detect errors or misappropriation of assets.
Cause
The monthly bank reconciliations were not prepared timely or properly and reviewed by management.
Effect
The City is susceptible to the concealment of misappropriation of cash assets and risk of misstatement of cash or
reconciling items.
Recommendation
We recommend that all bank accounts be reconciled and reviewed each month prior to preparation of the monthly
financial statements. The review s hould include tests of mechanical accuracy and tracing of item s on the
reconciliation to the relevant sour ce documents. The composition of unreconciled differences should be
determined and followed up on, and any journal entries deemed necessary as a result be recorded.
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
Management accepts the finding and recommendation. Management will establish procedures in the current
period to address the following issues:
 The Financial Services Department will continue to enhance its bank reconciliation procedures to include
timelines and checklists.
 The timely completion of bank reconciliations will be prioritized and incorporated into the Financial
Services Director and Financial Services Manager’s regular responsibilities, position descriptions and
performance evaluations.
 The Financial Services Director and/or designee will ensure the timely completion and accuracy of the
bank reconciliations on a monthly basis.
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
2012-03 Disaster Recovery Plan
Condition
During the course of our audit, we inquired of finance personnel regarding the City’s disaster recovery plan. The
City should have a plan in place that would protect the financial data and se curity information in the case of a
natural disaster.
Criteria
Florida is especially susceptible to natural disasters i n the form of hurricanes and t ornados. The staff should be
trained and backups to f inancial data and securit y systems made on a re gular basis. Back ups should be
maintained offsite.
Cause
The personnel knew that there was a plan, but did not know any details related to how it should work. There were
no drills or training to keep employees aware of the pro cedures. Personnel were not aware of any details of the
disaster recovery plan and the backups were maintained on site.
Effect
Without an appropriate di saster recovery plan in effect, the City would be extrem ely hindered in their efforts to
get their services up and running as so on as possible for its residents. The City would have lost the ability to
provide funds, purchase orders and other required documents to effectively account for and manage the recovery
process.
Recommendation
A disaster recovery plan should be for mally adopted, written and included with the employ ees’ handbook /
materials to include regula r and consistent backups of financial data with a copy of those backups stored offsite.
There should also be an e stablishment of all security protocols required for both the backup and the r ecovery
procedures. Staff should be trained on a regular and consistent basis regarding each of their responsibilities in the
case of a disaster. The City should consider conducting a drill of the disaster recovery plan at least once a year.
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
Management accepts the finding and recommendation. Management will establish procedures in the current
period to address the following issues:
 The Financial Services Department will update the City’s Disaster Preparedness and Recovery Plan.
 The City will conduct any required employee training. The employee training sessions will be conducted
for the Financial Services Department and Other Departments as needed.
 The City will continue to enhance its security protocols, back up and the recovery procedures.
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED)
2012-04 Accounts Receivable
Condition
We noted during the course of the audit that accounts receivable balances were not properly reconciled to reflect
the appropriate balances as of year-end.
Criteria
Prudent policies include a for mal closing process with supervisory Finance D epartment personnel being
responsible for the review and evaluati on of transactions and balances r ecorded. The review would include, at a
minimum, preparing a det ailed aged accounts receivable ledger, reviewing balances for consideration for writ e
off, or for an adjustment to the allowance for doubtf ul accounts and following up with collection procedures to
make sure appropriate measures are being taken on overdue accounts.
Cause
The cause of the conditions is the lack of a formal cl
finance personnel.

osing process which i ncorporates a thorough review by

Effect
Formal closing procedure s includes the following: determination that all transactions have been recorded and
posted, reconciling general ledger accounts with subsidiar y ledgers or schedules and m aking necessary
adjustments, running/printing year-end reports in or der to have a record of hi storical transactions for the y ear
(they will be useful during the audit), etc. L
ack of the i mplementation of these procedures may result in
misstatements in the financial statements preventing proper management consideration for those balances.
Recommendation
The City should consider developing f ormal accounts receivable interim and year end closi ng procedures. These
procedures should include timetables outlining appropriate due dates and instructions for schedules that should be
prepared. The closing procedures should be docu mented in a form al checklist that indicates the individual
responsible for the task, when it is due to be completed and when it is accomplished. We believe that a review and
evaluation of transactions recorded at year end should be performed to ensure the validity of amounts recorded, as
well as redu ce audit time. The im plementation of form al procedures will reduce the need for numerous
adjustments to financial records during the audit process, delay in the preparati on of financial reports nee ded by
management and the auditors.
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
Management accepts the finding and recommendation. Management will establish procedures in the current
period to address the following issues:
 The City will continue to strengthen its accounts receivable year-end closing processes and procedures,
which incorporates a thorough review of all accounts to ensure all transactions have been properly
recorded and reconciled in a proper timeframe.
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 The accounts receivable year-end closing process will include timelines and checklists for the Financial
Services Department. The new process will require the timely recording of accounts receivable year-end
closing entries into the City’s Financial Accounting System.
 The timely accounts receivable process will be prioritized and incorporated into the Financial Services
Manager and Financial Services Accounting Coordinator’s regular responsibilities, position description
and performance evaluation.
 The City will endeavor to upgrade the City’s Financial Accounting System and conduct employee
training to ensure a more efficient and effective accounts receivable year-end financial reporting process.
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED)
2012-05 Accounts Payable
Condition
We noted during the course of the audit that accounts payable balances were not properly reconciled to reflect the
appropriate balances as of year-end.
Criteria
Prudent policies include a for mal closing process with supervisory Finance D epartment personnel being
responsible for the review and evaluati on of transactions and balances r ecorded. The review would include, at a
minimum, preparing a detailed aged accounts pa yable ledger, reviewing balances for consi deration for review
with the ven dor, or for an adjust ment to the appropriate accounts and following up with vendor requests
concerning payment to make sure appropriate measures related to processing are being taken on invoices and the
related accounting recognition procedures.
Cause
The cause of the conditions is the lack of a formal cl
finance personnel.

osing process which i ncorporates a thorough review by

Effect
Formal closing procedure s includes the following: determination that all transactions have been recorded and
posted, reconciling general ledger accounts with subsidiar y ledgers or schedules and m aking necessary
adjustments, running/printing year-end reports in or der to have a record of hi storical transactions for the y ear
(they will be useful during the audit), etc. L
ack of the i mplementation of these procedures may result in
misstatements in the financial statements preventing proper management consideration for those balances.
Recommendation
The City should consider developing f ormal accounts pa yable interim and y ear end closing procedures. These
procedures should include timetables outlining appropriate due dates and instructions for schedules that should be
prepared. The closing procedures should be docu mented in a form al checklist that indicates the individual
responsible for the task, when it is due to be completed and when it is accomplished. We believe that a review and
evaluation of transactions recorded at year end should be performed to ensure the validity of amounts recorded, as
well as redu ce audit time. The im plementation of form al procedures will reduce the need for numerous
adjustments to financial records during the audit process, delay in the preparati on of financial reports nee ded by
management and the auditors.
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
Management accepts the finding and recommendation. Management will establish procedures in the current
period to address the following issues:
 The City will continue to strengthen its accounts payable year-end closing processes and procedures,
which incorporates a thorough review of all accounts to ensure all transactions have been properly
recorded and reconciled in a proper timeframe.
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 The accounts payable year-end closing process will include timelines and checklists for the Financial
Services Department. The new process will require the timely recording of accounts payable year-end
closing entries into the City’s Financial Accounting System.
 The timely accounts receivable process will be prioritized and incorporated into the Financial Services
Director and Financial Services Specialist’s regular responsibilities, position description and performance
evaluation.
 The City will endeavor to upgrade the City’s Financial Accounting System and conduct employee
training to ensure a more efficient and effective accounts payable year-end financial reporting process.
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED)
2012-06 Grant review processes
Condition
We noted during the course of the audit that the City
as a sub-recipient for two federal grant awards
properly reconciling and recording the grant activity to reflect the appropriate balances as of year-end.

was not

Criteria
Prudent policies include a formal review process by supe rvisory Finance Department personnel responsible for
the recognition of grants, contracts and agreements . The review would include, at a minimum, a determination of
the reporting and subm ission requirements, expenditure limitations, responsibilities the City is to be held
accountable for and the preparation of a schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
Cause
The cause of the condition is the lack of a formal review process for grants, contracts and agreements
required of finance personnel in order to properly record the effects in the records for the City.

which is

Effect
The recognition of federal grant award s includes the follo wing: determination that all transactions have been
recorded and posted correctly , all transactions meet the limitations expressed in the grant agreem ent, amounts
reconcile to the general ledger grant fund accounts with all related schedules for making necessary adjustments,
running/printing year-end reports in order to have a record of historical transactions for th e year (they will be
useful during the audit), the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, etc. Lack of the
implementation of these procedures may result in misst atements in the fina ncial statements preventing proper
management consideration for those balances and any related grant compliance issues.
Recommendation
The City should consider developing a formal system of grant, contracts and agreements review procedures.
These procedures should include ti metables outlining appropr iate due dates and instructions for sched ules that
should be prepared and a detail listing of all compliance requirements. The procedures should be documented in a
formal checklist that indicates the individual responsible for the task, when it is due to be completed and when it is
accomplished. Additionally, staff should be assigned the task of preparing the preli minary data required f or the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards. We b elieve that an additional review and evaluation of grants,
contracts and agreements at y ear end should be performed to ensure the validi ty of amounts recorded, as well as
reduce the ti me for co mpletion of the audit. The i mplementation of formal pro cedures will reduce the need for
numerous adjustments to financial reco rds during th e audit process and delay s in th e preparation of financial
reports needed by management and the auditors.
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
Management accepts the finding and recommendation. Management will establish procedures in the current
period to address the following issues:
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 The City will develop a grant review process which will incorporate a thorough review of all grant
requirements that will outline appropriate due dates and instructions for grant required schedules.
 The grant review year-end process will include timelines and checklists for the Financial Services
Department and ensure accuracy of data recorded in the City’s Financial Accounting System.
 The new process will require that staff timely prepare the preliminary data need to comply with grant
audit requirements.
 The timely grant review process will be prioritized and incorporated into the Financial Services Director
and Financial Services Analyst’s regular responsibilities, position description and performance
evaluation.
 The City will endeavor to upgrade the City’s Financial Accounting System and conduct employee
training to ensure a more efficient and effective grant review year-end financial reporting process.
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SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
None
SECTION IV – STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Not Applicable
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